
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Thursday, January 20, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements  
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held December 20, 2021 

8. Employee Recognition 
 

 

BUSINESS 
 

9. Administer Oath of Office to Elected Officials 
 

10. ANX-C2100043 and ZA-C2100043: Allen Street Properties, LLC and B & K Turner Family, LLP have 
petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville tract 2 with 32.937 acres (amended application) 
tract known as a portion of TMP 093 004 001, located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone 
from County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to City Zoning of 
R3 (Single Family Residential). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on September 13, 2021 
and City Council on October 4, 2021. City Council for a decision on October 18, 2021 – Tabled from 
October 18, 2021 to December 6, 2021 to January 20, 2022 
 

11. Maple Hill Drive Detention Pond 
 

12. Ordinance No. 01-2022: An Ordinance To Amend The Water And Sewer Ordinance Of The City Of 
Dawsonville; To Provide For Further Regulation Of Wastewater Suspended Solids, To Provide An 
Effective Date; And For Other Purposes. (First Reading: December 20, 2021; Second Reading and 
Consideration to Adopt: January 20, 2022) 

13. Ordinance No. 02-2022: An Ordinance By The City Of Dawsonville To Amend Its Zoning Ordinance; 
To Amend Provisions On Conditional Uses And Variances; To Amend Provisions Related To City 
Initiated Rezonings; To Address Buffers; To Provide For An Effective Date; To Provide For 
Severability; And For Other Purposes (First Reading:  January 20, 2022; Public Hearing, Second 
Reading and Consideration to Adopt: February 7, 2022) 
 

14. Award Bid – Construction of an Administrative Building for Public Works and Utilities Department 
WORK SESSION 
 

15. Discuss Amending Personnel Policy to Include a Floating Holiday for Employees 
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

16. Bob Bolz, City Manager 
17. Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator 

 
 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED        

     ADJOURNMENT  
 
 

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, February 7, 2022 
 
 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should 
contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  01/20/2022     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held December 20, 2021 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  01/20/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 

 
• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD DECEMBER 20, 2021 

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, December 20, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember William Illg, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager 
Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Operations Foreman Steven McNeal, Utilities 
Operation Manager Jacob Barr, Planning Director David Picklesimer and Finance Administrator 
Robin Gazaway. 
 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and Pledge were led by Councilmember Illg. 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Eason wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year.  
He also announced the meetings in January will be held on the 1st and 3rd Thursdays due to the 
observance of New Year’s Day and Martin Luther King holidays occurring on the 1st and 3rd Mondays 
of January.     

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda with the removal of item #9 and to 
move it to the January 6, 2022 meeting made by made by C. Phillips; second by M. French.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.  
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  Robert Howard, 1732 Perimeter Road, Dawsonville – He complimented the City on 
how easy the process was for him to rezone his property.  He stated this was his first interaction with 
local government and expressed his gratefulness for the help he received.  

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a, b, c, d, e) 
made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held December 6, 2021 
• Executive Session held December 6, 2021 

b. Approve Staff Appointments 
• City Manager – Bob Bolz 
• City Clerk and Municipal Court Clerk – Beverly Banister 
• Deputy City Clerk – Tracy Smith 

c. Approve 2022 Mayor and Council Board Designations and Compensation 
Compensation of one meeting per month as designated below when attended: 
• Planning Commission – Caleb Phillips 
• Historic Preservation Commission – Mark French 
• Downtown Development Authority – William Illg 
• Family Connection – John Walden 
• Board of Health – Mark French 
• Animal Control Board – Caleb Phillips 
• Chamber of Commerce – Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem 
• Dawsonville History Museum – Mayor 
• GMA – Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem 
• GMRC – Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem 

d. Approve 2022 Appointment of Municipal Court Judge Ronald Reemsnyder and Agreement 
e. Approve Reappointment for Downtown Development Authority Members   

• Kevin Hammond:    Term: 01/01/2022 – 12/31/2025 
• Tasha Howell:         Term: 01/01/2022 – 12/31/2025 
• Jamie McCracken:  Term: 01/01/2022 – 12/31/2025 

 

8. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  City Manager Bob Bolz introduced John Tatum as the newest Public 
Works employee.  The Mayor and Council recognized Stacy Harris for four years of service.  Kyle 
Richardson received the November Employee of the Month award, Sara Beacham received the 
December Employee of the Month award, the Employee of the Fourth Quarter and the 2021 Employee 
of the Year Award.   
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, December 20, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

BUSINESS 
 

9. Removed from the agenda   
 

10. ZA-C2200053: Robert Howard has petitioned a zoning amendment for TMP 093 058 Land Lot 429 
13th District, Located at 1732 Perimeter Road from OD (Office District) to R-1 (Restricted Single 
Family Residential). Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on November 8, 2021 and City 
Council on December 6, 2021.  City Council for a decision on December 20, 2021. 

 

Planning Director Picklesimer read the zoning amendment request.   
 

Motion to approve the zoning amendment request as presented made by C. Phillips; second by M. 
French.  Councilmember Illg expressed his slight hesitation to support the rezoning of the property to 
residential because he sits on the Downtown Development Authority board and recognizes the need 
for commercial properties.  He is in favor of this request but may not consider future requests. 
Councilmember Walden agreed. Vote carried unanimously in favor.   
 

11. ZSP-C2200055:  Cook Communities has petitioned site plan approval as required for single-family 
attached dwelling (townhouses) in the R-6, Multiple-Family Residential District for TMP D02 002 Land 
Lot 507 and 446 4th District, Located at 362 Maple Street.  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning 
Commission on November 8, 2021 and City Council on December 6, 2021.  City Council for a decision 
on December 20, 2021.  
 

Planning Picklesimer read the request. 
 

Motion to approve as presented made by C. Phillips; second by M. French.  Mayor Eason expressed 
the desire for Council to consider a rental cap be placed in the covenants for 15% of the properties to 
be rentals and a hardship exemption with a maximum of twenty-four months.  He would also like it to 
be defined as an active adult community.  Attorney Tallant stated an active adult community is defined 
as 80% of the homes having at least one person who is 55 years of age or older.  Councilmember 
Phillips stated his motion remains as is without the restrictions.  Vote carried three in favor (Phillips, 
French, Walden) with one opposed (Illg). 
 

12. MAPLE HILL DRIVE DETENTION POND:  Planning Director Picklesimer read the request from two 
citizens residing on 80 and 91 Maple Hill Drive who petitioned the Council to perform permanent 
maintenance on the detention pond located on their properties; all the residents on Maple Hill Drive 
benefit from said detention pond.  Attorney Tallant expressed concern about the City agreeing to 
perform maintenance on property it does not own.  First, the precedent it will set and second, violating 
the gratuities clause which states if the City is going to provide services or goods of any kind it is 
expected to receive something of like kind in exchange.  
 

Motion to table the request to the January 6, 2022 City Council meeting made by M. French; second 
by C. Phillips.  Attorney Tallant reiterated his concern on the matter restating the City would essentially 
be providing a service on property it does not own and is not getting anything in return.   Mayor Eason 
stated the lowest estimate to clean the detention pond came in at approximately $10,000.  He further 
explained there are thirteen properties who contribute to the detention pond but the pond itself is 
located on only two of the properties and there is no HOA.  Councilmember Phillips asked if there 
was any case law relevant to this situation and asked what the repercussion of the property owners 
would be if they filled in the detention pond.  Attorney Tallant replied there could be concern of liability 
of the property owners since they would be changing the flow of water causing it to go on someone’s 
property.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

13. RENEWAL OF 2022 VAPE LICENSES:  Motion to approve the 2022 vape licenses as presented 
made by C. Phillips; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 
 

14. 2022 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES:  Motion to approve the 2022 Professional Services as presented 
and to authorize the City Manager to pursue a bid for an Airport Consultant which needs to be issued 
every five years made by W. Illg; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. (Exhibit 
‘A”) 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, December 20, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 

15. 2022 MAYOR PRO TEMPORE APPOINTMENT:  Motion to approve Councilmember Walden as the 
2022 Mayor Pro Tempore made by C. Phillips; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried three in favor (Phillips, 
Illg, French) with one abstained (Walden) 
 

16. Ordinance No. 07-2021: An Ordinance To Amend The Water And Sewer Ordinance Of The City Of 
Dawsonville; To Provide For Further Regulation Of Wastewater Suspended Solids, To Provide An 
Effective Date; And For Other Purposes. (First Reading: December 20, 2021; Second Reading and 
Consideration to Adopt: January 6, 2022) 
Utilities Operations Manager Jacob Barr read the first reading of the ordinance amendment and 
explained the changes to the ordinance.   
 

WORK SESSION 
 

17. REDISTRICTING PRESENTATION BY FAITH BRYAN:  Faith Bryan from the Georgia Mountain 
Regional Commission explained the City of Dawsonville has increased in population according to the 
State by 1,084 making the population of the City 3,838.  Using the 2020 Census blocks she updated 
each post accordingly with the population increase and there was a deviation of higher than ten 
percent in some areas which is not permitted.  Therefore, she had to redistrict some of the areas by 
census blocks to balance the population increase to alleviate the ten percent deviation.  She utilized 
the 94-171 2020 Census Date Redistricting File to prepare the proposed map.   
 

Attorney Tallant stated the City can proceed with adopting the new redistricting map through a Charter 
Amendment.  It will not require legislative approval from the State.      

18. ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 802 – BUFFER REQUIREMENTS:  Planning 
Director Picklesimer explained the request to move forward with an ordinance amendment regarding 
buffer requirements. 
 

Motion to approve moving forward with the ordinance amendment made by W. Illg; second by J. 
Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

19. ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE IX, SECTION 917 – EXPIRATION OF CONDITIONAL USE, 
VARIANCE AND ZONING APPROVAL:  Planning Director Picklesimer explained the request to 
move forward with an ordinance amendment regarding sunset laws. 
 

Motion to approve moving forward with the ordinance amendment made by J. Walden; second by W. 
Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

20. OPEN ANNEXATION DISCUSSION:  Mayor Eason explained the City has offered an open 
annexation period twice in the past in order to attempt to clean up the islands in the City.  This will 
enable citizens to annex their property at no cost; he is requesting Council to consider another period 
of time for open annexation.  Short discussion occurred.  
 

Motion to approve an open annexation period from now through April 30, 2022 made by W. Illg; 
second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

21. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  City Manager Bolz provided his report in the agenda packet and 
reported the leak adjustment for the month was $1913.19; the DCHS took in 300 cans for our food 
barrel, and he also stated COVID numbers are on the rise.  Mayor Eason commented on the amount 
of the leak adjustment; Bolz stated it was for three separate properties. 
 

22. ROBIN GAZAWAY, FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR:  Financial reports representing fund balances 
and activity through November 30, 2021 were provided in the agenda packet.  No questions from 
Council. 

 

ADJOURNMENT:   
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, December 20, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

At 5:45 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by J. Walden; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  
 
 

                                                                               Approved this 6th day of January 2022 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
    
 
Attested: _________________________        
               Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



City of Dawsonville City Council 

Mike Eason, Mayor Robert Bolz 
Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post #1 415 Highway 53 East, Suite 100 City Manager 
William Illg,     Councilmember Post #2 Dawsonville, GA  30534 
John Walden,   Councilmember Post #3 Office (706) 265-3256       Fax (706) 265-4214 Beverly Banister 
Mark French,  Councilmember Post #4 www.dawsonville-ga.gov City Clerk 

City of Dawsonville Professional Services for 2022 

• City Attorney – Miles Hansford & Tallant, LLC

• Auditor – Alexander, Almand and Bangs, LLP

• Engineer – G. Ben Turnipseed Engineers, Inc.

• Secondary Engineer – Civil Engineering Consultants, Inc.

• City Solicitor – Jonah Howell

• Testing of Wastewater – Environmental Management Services

• Geologist – A& S Environmental Services

• Repair/Installation of Water and Sewer Infrastructure – Townley
Construction

• Airport Consultant Engineering Services – Lead Edge Design Group

• Long Term Water Quality Monitoring – Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc.
(acquired CCR Environmental, Inc.)

Exhibit "A"

http://www.dawsonville-ga.gov/


                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  01/20/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT THE FOLLOWING:  
• JANUARY 2022 EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH  
• SERVICE AWARDS FOR THE MONTH OF JANUARY 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    8     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:         ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE TO ELECTED OFFICIALS  
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  01/20/2022       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
  
 TO ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE TO ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
       

 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
  
 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
         
 
 
 
 

     
 
 
 REQUESTED BY:   Mike Eason, Mayor    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   9   
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:   ANX-C2100043 AND ZA-C2100043    _______________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  01/20/2022       
 

 
PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: VOTE TABLED FROM DECEMBER 6, 2021 
 
ANX-ZA C2100043: Allen Street Properties, LLC and B & K Turner Family, LLP have petitioned to annex 
into the city limits of Dawsonville tract 2 with 32.937 acres (amended application) tract known as a portion of 
TMP 093 004 001, located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone from County Zoning of RSR 
(Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to City Zoning of R3 (Single Family Residential). 
Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on September 13, 2021 and City Council on October 4, 2021. 
City Council for a decision on October 18, 2021. 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• Planning Commission denied the request on 9/13/21. Concept plan did not meet city ordinances.  
• Amended application to annex and zone tract 2 with 32.937 acre only. 
• Amended concept plan reflects proposed 65 units. 
• Amended letter of intent request to approve 75 units yielding a density of 2.28 units per acre. 
• Applicant is requesting a variance to the Land Development Regulations Chapter 109 Sec 109-53-

Sidewalks to eliminate the required sidewalk along Perimeter Road lots 58 thru 65. 
• Planning department has provided a revised timeline. 
• Planning department has provided a department summary with recommended conditions if 

approved.     
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: Approve, Amend, Deny  
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
If annexation and zoning is approved motion recommended to be as follows: Motion to approve annexation 
and zoning application C2100043 tract # 2 known as a portion of TMP 093 004 001 with 32.937 acres. 
Density shall not exceed 75 units or 2.28 units per acre. Approval shall be conditioned per Planning and 
Zoning Department summary letter dated 1/11/22.    
 
If the variance is approved motion recommended to be as follows: Motion to approve the variance request to 
the Land Development Regulations Chapter 109 Sec 109-53-Sidewalks to eliminate the required sidewalk 
along Perimeter Rd lots 58-65. 
 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 



. 
 
 
 
 
415 Highway 53 E. Suite 100 
Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 
 
   

 
 
 
 

(706) 265-3256 
Fax (706) 265-4214 

www.dawsonville-ga.gov 

 
Date: 1/11/2022 

 

To: Mayor Mike Eason and City Council 

 

Reference: ANX/ZA C2100043 Planning and Zoning Department Summary 

 

The planning department has provided the following pertinent information to help you decide on this 
request: 

1.  If the zoning amendment is approved the Planning Department is requesting a condition of zoning to 
include an approved water and sewer service area agreement between Etowah Water and Sewer Authority 
and the City of Dawsonville. The service area agreement dedication must include both water and sewer 
services. The agreement shall be dedicated to the City of Dawsonville prior to the issuance of a grading 
permit (LDP).  

2. If the zoning amendment is approved the Planning Department is requesting a condition of zoning to 
include the installation of an engineered AC or Solar powered, high intensity LED signs, in pavement 
crosswalk LED lights and activated device across Perimeter Road at the intersection of Allen Street to 
provide pedestrian access to Robinson Elementary school. 

3. If the zoning amendment is approved the Planning Department is requesting a condition of zoning to 
include the installation of a sidewalk from the 32.937-acre tract to the existing sidewalk system in front of 
Dawson County High school. 

4. If the zoning amendment is approved the Planning Department is requesting a condition of zoning to 
include a ten foot no access buffer along Perimeter Road.  

5.  If the zoning amendment is approved the Planning Department is requesting a condition of zoning to 
include the installation of a right in and right-out vehicle movement at the north entrance due to the 
intersection alignment not meeting GDOT intersection offset requirements. 

 
 
David Picklesimer 
Planning Director 
 

 

 

 



. 
 
 
 
 
415 Highway 53 E. Suite 100 
Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 

 

 
 
 
 

(706) 265-3256 
Fax (706) 265-4214 

www.dawsonville-ga.gov 

 

Date: 12/7/21 

 

From: David Picklesimer, Planning Director 

 

Reference: ANX/ZA C2100043 Timeline 

 

• Original application submitted to the city: 8/14/20. 
• Original application submitted to Dawson County BOC: 8/21/20. 
• Planning Department advertised original application: 8/26/20. 
• Original application response received from Dawson County BOC: 9/11/20. 
• Planning Commission public hearing on original application: 9/14/20. Applicant requested postponement. 
• Planning Commission public hearing on original application: 11/9/20. PC voted to deny. 
• Council held public hearing on original application:11/16/20. Council postponed until 1/19/21. 
• Applicant amended application: 12/9/20. 
• Amended application submitted to Dawson County BOC: 12/9/20 
• Dawson County BOC response to amended application received: 1/7/21.  
• Council held public hearing 1/19/21. Council tabled until arbitration complete. 
• Dawson County BOC withdrew objection 5/11/21.  
• Planning Department advertised Council public hearing meeting on 5/26/21 for amended application.  
• Council public hearing date 6/21/21 for amended application.  
• Council final decision date 7/19/21 for amended application.  
• Applicant requested to postpone 7/19/21 until 10/18/21 to allow adjoining property owner time to request 

annexation. 
• Planning Department advertised amended application 8/18/21 due to wrong TMP advertised. 
• Planning Commission public hearing date 9/13/21 due to wrong TMP advertised. 
• Planning Commission denied request 9/13/21. 
• City Council public hearing date 10/4/21 due to wrong TMP advertised. 
• City Council decision date 10/18/21.  
• City Council postponed until 12/6/21. 
• City Council postponed until 1/20/22. 

 

  

 





Perimeter Road 
32.937 Acres 

 
All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Land Lots 372, 373, 427 and 428 of the 
North Half of the 13th Land District, Dawson County, Georgia and being more 
particularly described as follows; 
 
To find the True Point of Beginning, commence at the intersection of Land Lots 371 and 
372 and the Easterly right of way of Perimeter Road (80’ right of way), said point marked 
by a ½ inch Rod found; Thence traveling on said Perimeter Road right of way the following 
three (3) courses and distances: 
along a curve to the right having a radius of 1766.51 feet and an arc length of 162.28 feet 
being subtended by a chord bearing of South 12 Degrees 33 Minutes 28 Seconds East  and a 
chord distance of 162.22feet to a point; THENCE along a curve to the right having a radius 
of 1049.03 feet and an arc length of 473.65 feet being subtended by a chord bearing of 
South 03 Degrees 00 Minutes 32 Seconds West  and a chord distance of 469.63 feet to a 
point; THENCE continuing on said right of way South 15 Degrees 56 Minutes 37 Seconds 
West for a distance of 651.37 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set, 
said point being THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
THENCE from said point as thus established, leaving said easterly right of way of 
Perimeter Road, North 89 Degrees 17 Minutes 56 Seconds East for a distance of 172.17 feet 
to a point; THENCE along a curve to the right having a radius of 636.02 feet and an arc 
length of 103.03 feet being subtended by a chord bearing of South 86 Degrees 03 Minutes 
37 Seconds East  and a chord distance of 102.92 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ 
inch rebar pin set; THENCE South 81 Degrees 25 Minutes 09 Seconds East for a distance 
of 106.01 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE along a 
curve to the left having a radius of 663.34 feet and an arc length of 195.29 feet being 
subtended by a chord bearing of South 89 Degrees 51 Minutes 12 Seconds East  and a 
chord distance of 194.58 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; 
THENCE North 81 Degrees 42 Minutes 46 Seconds East for a distance of 407.62 feet to a 
point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE along a curve to the right 
having a radius of 59.40 feet and an arc length of 40.63 feet being subtended by a chord 
bearing of South 78 Degrees 41 Minutes 37 Seconds East  and a chord distance of 39.84 feet 
to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE South 59 Degrees 06 
Minutes 00 Seconds East for a distance of 40.85 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ 
inch rebar pin set; THENCE along a curve to the right having a radius of 159.40 feet and 
an arc length of 47.19 feet being subtended by a chord bearing of South 50 Degrees 37 
Minutes 08 Seconds East  and a chord distance of 47.02 feet to a point, said point marked 
by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE South 42 Degrees 08 Minutes 15 Seconds East for a 
distance of 19.39 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE 
along a curve to the left having a radius of 240.60 feet and an arc length of 188.97 feet being 
subtended by a chord bearing of South 64 Degrees 38 Minutes 15 Seconds East and a chord 
distance of 184.15 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE 
South 87 Degrees 08 Minutes 15 Seconds East for a distance of 60.12 feet to a point, said 
point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE traveling South 02 Degrees 23 Minutes 



44 Seconds East for a distance of 817.75 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch 
rebar pin found;  THENCE South 85 Degrees 54 Minutes 23 Seconds West for a distance of 
1589.65 feet to a point on the easterly right of way of Perimeter Road (80’ right of way), 
said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin found; 
 
THENCE traveling on said Perimeter Road right of way the following four (4) courses and 
distances: 
along a curve to the right having a radius of 4750.52 feet and an arc length of 180.80 feet 
being subtended by a chord bearing of North 05 Degrees 58 Minutes 08 Seconds East  and 
a chord distance of 180.79 feet to a point; THENCE along a curve to the right having a 
radius of 3438.13 feet and an arc length of 387.33 feet being subtended by a chord bearing 
of North 10 Degrees 17 Minutes 12 Seconds East  and a chord distance of 387.13 feet to a 
point; THENCE along a curve to the right having a radius of 3438.13 feet and an arc 
length of 145.79 feet being subtended by a chord bearing of North 14 Degrees 43 Minutes 
43 Seconds East  and a chord distance of 145.78 feet to a point; THENCE North 15 Degrees 
56 Minutes 37 Seconds East for a distance of 360.06 feet to a point, said point being THE 
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Said property contains 32.937 Acres 











































































                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:  MAPLE HILL DRIVE DETENTION POND    _______________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:                01/20/2022     ____ 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT # 100-4200-22200___________________________________ 

  Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget: _____ Capital Budget: Other________  

      __X_Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fund: _______General Fund 
 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  
Gary & Katelyn Gravitt and James & Julie Morgan has petitioned the city to perform permanent 
maintenance of the detention pond at 80 and 91 Maple Hill Drive. 
 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
• Detention pond was constructed in 2003. 
• Morgan’s purchased property in 2003. 
• Gravitt’s purchased property in 2017. 
• Subdivision does not have a dedicated HOA. 
• Detention pond serves all 13 lots. 
• Planning Department searched council minutes and found no official dedication to the city. 
• Storm water Ordinance Chapter 107-195 allows the city to do maintenance work and issue a lien 

on property.  
• Presented 9/20/21 Council work session. 
• Council meeting 10/04/21 decision tabled until 11/01/21. 
• Council meeting 11/01/21 decision tabled until 12/20/21. 
• Council meeting 12/20/21 decision tabled until 1/6/22. 
• Council meeting canceled 1/6/22 and decision 1/20/22. 

 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: Approve, Deny or Postpone 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 11 
 

























      

  SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 01-2022 – HIGH STRENGTH WASTEWATER 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE(S):  01/20/2022  

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT # 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE WATER AND SEWER ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
DAWSONVILLE; TO PROVIDE FOR FURTHER REGULATION OF WASTEWATER SUSPENDED 
SOLIDS, TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. (FIRST READING: 
DECEMBER 20, 2021; SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT: JANUARY 20, 
2022) 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 

REQUEST TO AMEND THE CITY’S HIGH STRENGTH WASTEWATER ORDINANCE 

     OPTIONS: 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 

     REQUESTED BY:  Jacob Barr, Utilities Operations Manager 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR 

AGENDA ITEM #     12 



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 01-2022 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE WATER AND SEWER ORDINANCE OF 
THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE; TO PROVIDE FOR FURTHER REGULATION 
OF WASTEWATER SUSPENDED SOLIDS, TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia, is authorized 
by Article IX, Section II, Paragraph III of the Constitution of the State of Georgia of 
1983, and O.C.G.A.  § 36-35-3 to provide water and sewer utilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the City Charter, Mayor and Members of City Council 
are authorized to establish rights, rules, regulations, and ordinances as may be 
necessary for the operation of its utilities and as they deem proper for the general 
welfare of the inhabitants of the City of Dawsonville; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1.12(9) of the City Charter, the City is 
empowered to acquire, lease, construct, operate, maintain, sell and dispose of public 
utilities, including sewer and drains, sewage disposal; and 
 
 WHEREAS, high suspended solids in high strength wastewater can adversely 
affect the treatment process, clog sewers and equipment, and increase sludge costs.  
Multiple violations have an adverse effect on plant operation, even if the monthly 
average of several tests is below the City’s current surcharge level. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAWSONVILLE HEREBY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. Amendments to Section 14-84  
 

(a) Section 14-84 High strength wastewater surcharge is hereby amended by adding 
the following language to Section (a): 
 

(7) Total suspended solids above 300 milligrams per liter (mg/L), not to 
exceed a maximum of 600 mg/L. 

 
(b) Section 14-84 (c) shall be amended by repealing the current sub-section (1) and 

replacing it with the following: 
 

(1) Monitoring to determine surcharge shall be conducted by the user as required 
in either the pretreatment permit or a minimum of two tests per month. The 
average of all test results will be used to calculate the surcharge.  If multiple 
tests are taken and at least two tests exceed the allowable limit, then the 
surcharge and penalty will be prorated.  

 

Subject Matter: High Strength Wastewater 
Date of First Reading: December 20, 2021 
Date of Second Reading: January 20, 2022 
Date of Adoption:  



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
SECTION 2.   Amendment to Section 14-30 
 
 Section 14-30 Penalties for violation, is hereby amended as follows:  The current 
sub-section (d) shall become sub-section (e) and a new sub-section (d) will now read as 
follows: 
 

(d) For the second offense in any twelve (12) month period, a repeat offender fee 
equal to 25% of the penalty shall be added, with a fee equal to 50% of the penalty 
for the third offense, 75% of the penalty for the fourth and the fee shall be 
doubled (100%) for the fifth and any subsequent offense during any twelve (12) 
month period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, no fees shall be assessed in excess 
of that allowed by State Law to the extent addressed by State Law. 

 
 
SECTION 3.  Repeal of conflicting ordinances 
 
 All parts of Ordinances in conflict with the terms of this Ordinance are hereby 
repealed; but, it is hereby provided that any ordinance or law which may be applicable 
hereto and aid in carrying out and making effective the intent, purpose and provisions 
hereof, is hereby adopted as a part hereof and shall be legally construed to be in favor of 
upholding this ordinance on behalf of the City of Dawsonville. 
 
SECTION 4.  Severability 
 
 If any paragraph, subparagraph, sentence, clause, phrase or any portion of this 
Ordinance shall be declared invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent 
jurisdiction or if the provisions of any part of this Ordinance as applied to any particular 
situation or set of circumstances shall be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity 
shall not be construed to affect the provisions of this Ordinance not so held to be invalid, 
or the application of this Ordinance to other circumstances not so held to be invalid.  IT 
IS HEREBY DECLARED to be the intent of the City Council of the City of Dawsonville to 
provide for separate indivisible parts, and it does hereby adopt any and all parts hereof 
as may not be held invalid for any reason. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

SECTION 5. Effective date 
 
 This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage by the City Council of the City of 
Dawsonville. 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Members of Dawsonville, Georgia City 
Council this ______ day of _____________, 20___. 
 
 
       DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

By:        
       Mike Eason, Mayor 

 
 
       
Caleb Phillips, Council Member Post 1 

 
             
             
       William Illg, Council Member Post 2 
 
             
             
       John Walden, Council Member Post 3 
 
 
             
       Mark French, Council Member Post 4 
ATTESTED TO BY: 
 
 
       
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk   
 
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 02-2022 – ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT  

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE(S):  01/20/2022       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: FIRST READING  
 
ORDINANCE NO. 02-2022: AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE TO AMEND ITS ZONING 
ORDINANCE; TO AMEND PROVISIONS ON CONDITIONAL USES AND VARIANCES; TO AMEND 
PROVISIONS RELATED TO CITY INITIATED REZONINGS; TO ADDRESS BUFFERS; TO PROVIDE FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES (FIRST 
READING:  JANUARY 20, 2022; PUBLIC HEARING, SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION TO 
ADOPT: FEBRUARY 7, 2022) 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
REQUEST TO AMEND THE CITY’S ZONING ORDINANCE CONCERNING EXPIRATION OF 
DEVELOPMENT ZONING STATUS AND ADDITIONAL UNDISTURBED BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 
 
COUNCIL APPROVED TO MOVE FORWARD WITH ZONING AMENDMENT AT THE 12/20/2021 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:    David Picklesimer, Planning Director  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     13     
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 02-2022 
 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE TO AMEND ITS ZONING 
ORDINANCE; TO AMEND PROVISIONS ON CONDITIONAL USES AND 
VARIANCES; TO AMEND PROVISIONS RELATED TO CITY INITIATED 
REZONINGS; TO ADDRESS BUFFERS; TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 
 
 WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of Georgia provides in article IX, Section II, 
Paragraph IV thereof, that the governing body may adopt plans and exercise the power of zoning;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Georgia General Assembly has enacted the Georgia Planning Act of 
1989, Georgia Laws, 1989 pp. 1317-1391, Act 634, which, among other things, provides for local 
governments to adopt plans and regulations to implement plans for the protection and preservation 
of natural resources, the environment, vital areas, and land use;  
 
 WHEREAS, the City finds that the regulations contained in this Ordinance are necessary 
for the purposes of implementing its comprehensive plan adopted pursuant to the requirements of 
the Georgia Planning Act of 1989;  
 
 WHEREAS, this Ordinance has been prepared and considered in accordance with the 
Zoning Procedures Act, O.C.G.A. § 36-66-1 et seq.;  
 
 WHEREAS, this Ordinance is necessary for the purpose of promoting the health, safety, 
morals, convenience, order, prosperity, and general welfare of the City of Dawsonville (the 
“City”);  
 

AND WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City desire to exercise their 
authority to adopt this ordinance. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE HEREBY 
ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1. 
 

Appendix A, Article VIII, of Subpart B of the Code of Dawsonville, Georgia, Section 802: Buffer 
Required is hereby amended by repealing the existing Section 802, and replacing it with the 
following which shall be a new Section 802: 
 

Subject Matter: Zoning Amendment-Expirations and Buffers 
Date of First Reading: January 20, 2022 
Date of Second Reading and Public Hearing: February 7, 2022 
Date of Adoption:  
 



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Sec. 802. Buffer required. 

Property zoned for commercial and industrial uses shall provide a buffer, as defined by these 
regulations, along any rear or side property lines abutting a residential district or abutting an alley 
across from a specified residential district, provided that no buffer shall extend within 15 feet of a 
public right-of-way line. Minimum buffer widths shall be established in accordance with the 
following stipulations.  

1. When an HB, CBD, or NB district abuts a residential district, a setback of 40 feet shall 
be provided, including a 30-foot buffer.  

2. When an LI or CIR district abuts a residential district, a setback of 60 feet shall be 
provided, including a 50-foot buffer.  

3. When any district abuts a TB district, a ten-foot planted landscape buffer shall be 
provided on property which abuts the TB district.  

4. Properties zoned residential in common subdivision developments shall provide a 20-
foot undisturbed buffer along any of the development adjoining property lines.   

It shall be the responsibility of the developer to designate required buffers on construction 
plans and provide tree save to delineate buffer areas to ensure that existing vegetation within 
required buffers is maintained, unless disturbance of the buffer is approved by the planning director 
or designee as specifically provided herein.  Wherever a buffer, in the determination of the 
Planning Director or his designee, is so sparsely vegetated that it does not achieve the buffer 
purpose of visually screening and separating properties, it shall be the duty of the developer to 
provide for additional plantings to achieve that purpose. 

Prohibited buffer encroachments include, but are not limited to, buildings, pavement, 
parking, service areas, detention ponds, roads, septic tanks, septic drain fields, walls. 

A buffer may be disturbed for approved access and utility crossings including, but not limited 
to, water and sewer lines, drainage pipes, drainage swells, privacy fence and gas lines if it does so 
via perpendicular crossing. Privacy fence installed parallel shall be installed along adjoining 
property line and or along the 20-foot buffer line. In addition, the removal of non-native, invasive 
species is allowed within the buffer zone at the discretion of the planning director. Any approved 
buffer disturbance must be accompanied by buffer replanting in order to achieve the buffer purpose 
of visual screening and separation. 

It shall be the responsibility of the property owner of the lot to be used or built upon to 
maintain existing vegetation within required buffers and to replant where sparsely vegetated or 
install fencing as approved to achieve the desired screening. Installation of vegetation or fencing 
may be phased in accordance with approved building plans.  
 

SECTION 2. 
 
Appendix A, Article IX of Subpart B of the Code of Dawsonville, Georgia, Section 917: 
Expiration of Conditional Use, Variance and Zoning Approval, is hereby amended by 
repealing the existing Section 917 and replacing it with the following which shall be a new Section 
917:  
 



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Sec. 917. Expiration of conditional use, variance  and zoning approval. 

a. If, after one year from the date the governing body approves a conditional use permit or the 
planning commission approves a variance, action has not been taken with the city to utilize 
the property in accordance therewith (such as securing a development permit, business 
license, or taking other actions involving obtaining a city permit, certificate or license 
showing a reliance thereon) the approval of the conditional use permit or variance as the case 
may be shall expire. At such point, the conditional use permit or variance shall be null, void 
and of no further force or effect. Prior to any expiration of approval, the owner of the property 
in question may petition the governing body for a modification or extension of variance or 
conditional use approval. Any such extension shall be valid for one year from the date of 
approval. Only one such extension shall be permitted.   

b. If a landowner takes action with the city to utilize the property in accordance with a 
conditional use permit and then ceases or abandons that conditional use for a continuous 
period of one year or more, the conditional use shall lapse, expire and be of no further validity.  

c.       Any approved zoning of property where there has been no application for land disturbance 
permit submitted within twenty-four months from the date of zoning approval shall result in 
a notice being delivered to the owner and the zoning applicant, if different, advising that a 
city-initiated rezoning to a constitutional zoning designation for the subject property may 
occur if no land disturbance permit application is tendered within thirty days and approved 
ninety days of said notice. Upon no land disturbance permit application being tendered and 
approved within the timelines set forth in this paragraph, the property shall be placed upon a 
city council agenda for consideration of a city-initiated rezoning.     

 
SECTION 3. 

 
If any section, provision or clause of any part of this Ordinance shall be declared invalid 

or unconstitutional, or if the provisions of any part of this Ordinance as applied to any particular 
situation or set of circumstances shall be declared invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity shall 
not be construed to affect the portions of this Ordinance not so held to be invalid, or the application 
of this Ordinance to other circumstances not so held to be invalid. It is hereby declared as the intent 
that this Ordinance would have been adopted had such invalid portion not been included herein. 
 

SECTION 4.  
 

All Ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION 5.  
 

This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption, the public good demanding the same. 
 
  



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

SO ADOPTED AND ORDAINED by the City Council of Dawsonville, Georgia, this _____ day 
of ________________, 2022. 
 

MAYOR AND DAWSONVILLE CITY  
 COUNCIL 
 
 

By:        
       Mike Eason, Mayor 

 
 
       
Caleb Phillips, Council Member Post 1 

 
             
             
       William Illg, Council Member Post 2 
 
             
             
       John Walden, Council Member Post 3 
 
 
             
       Mark French, Council Member Post 4 
ATTESTED TO BY: 
 
 
       
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk   
 
 
 



                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT: AWARD BID – CONSTRUCTION OF AN ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING FOR  
PUBLIC WORKS AND UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 

 
     DATE(s):                  _   WORK SESSION                          __01/20/2022_  CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
  
 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: To award bids for construction of office space for the Utility Operations Manager and 
Public Works Director, together these two managers supervise 10+ employees and manage substantial budgets. 
Structure will be constructed on old home site adjacent to the maintenance barn. Construction will provide climate-
controlled offices, meeting space, bathroom, varmint proof file/map storage/future office, kitchen and breakroom. 
Contingency funding includes computers, and furniture as well as updated SCADA equipment. 
  
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES 
 
Current offices are housed in 16’ x 20’ break room space in existing maintenance barn. Because of this: 

• Supervisors have no privacy for meeting with employees, scheduling, planning, or other critical functions of their 
position. Staff in these departments number 10 people. 

• Current location allows dirt, dust and other debris to accumulate on essential computer equipment used in daily 
operations. 

• Temperature control is expensive and sometimes to the extreme that computers are impacted negatively. 
• Bays are needed for equipment storage, repair and maintenance. Winter road equipment must remain in space 

heated above freezing. Utilization of bays for office will hamstring operational efficiency. 
• Currently due to COVID, staff cannot even work in this space at the same time due to lack of adequate social 

distancing space. Employees must take lunch breaks outside of this space or take separate lunch breaks to ensure 
social distancing. 

• Currently there is no storage space for maps, critical EPD paperwork or required record keeping. 
• Construction will allow for future growth. 

 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
Award total low bid amount of $367,373.00 to Bayne Development Group, LLC for construction of administrative space for 
Utility and Public Works Directors to be funded out of reserves to be reimbursed out of ARPA funds (if allowed), SPLOST 
VI and VII, Capital Water and Sewer. 
 
 

 
     DEPARTMENT:  ____________________________________________________________ 

 
     REQUESTED BY: ____Jacob Barr, Utility Op. Mangers & Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director____ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #_14__ 
 

 

X 









 
 

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF 
A PUBLIC WORKS OFFICE BUILDING 

FOR THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 
 

The City of Dawsonville hereby requests BIDS for furnishing all materials, labor, tools, 
equipment, and appurtenances necessary for the construction of the following: THE CITY OF 
DAWSONVILLE - PUBLIC WORKS OFFICE BUILDING 

 
BIDS will be accepted until 11:30 a.m. local time on Thursday, December 16, 2021, at City 
Hall, 415 Highway 53 East, Dawsonville, GA 30534, then publicly opened and read aloud. 

 
THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE – PUBLIC WORKS OFFICE BUILDING includes the 
following: 
The project shall include the construction of a 40' x 30' (1,200sf) Dawsonville Public Works 
Office Building, as well as the furnishing of all materials, labor, equipment, and appurtenances 
necessary to complete the work. 

 
All BID DOCUMENTS may be downloaded at https://cecincga.com under the ‘Bid 
Information’ tab. Upon payment of $50.00 (non-refundable), the Contractor shall be placed 
on the Plan Holders list and be eligible to bid the project. Hard copies of the Contract 
Documents will not be available. Any questions should be directed to Tiffany Barry in 
writing to tiffany@cecincga.com. The deadline for submission of questions will be 
December 8, 2021. Checks should be mailed to Civil Engineering Consultants at 4994 
Lower Roswell Road, Suite 18, Marietta, Georgia 30068. Please reference the project and 
provide the contact’s name, phone number, and an email address. 

 
A satisfactory Bid Bond (in the amount of 5% of the Bid), executed by the Bidder, and an 
acceptable surety company listed in the latest issue of U.S. Treasury Circular 570, will 
accompany each BID. In lieu of a Bid Bond, the City will accept a cashier's check, certified 
check, or cash deposit in an amount equal to at least 5% of the total contract amount. The Owner 
reserves the right to reject any or all Bids or to waive any informality in the bidding, to evaluate 
Bids, and to accept any Bid, which in his opinion, may be for his best interest. 

 
The successful Bidder for this Contract will be required to furnish a satisfactory Performance 
Bond and a Labor and Material Payment Bond, with a corporate surety approved by the OWNER 
and listed in the latest issue of U.S. Treasury Circular 570, each in the amount of 100% of the 
Bid. An Irrevocable Letter of Credit from a local, Dawson County bank is acceptable in lieu of 
Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond. 

https://cecincga.com/
mailto:tiffany@cecincga.com


City of Dawsonville
Administrative 
Facility for Utilities & 
Public Works Depts.

“Protecting our history and 
providing for the future.”



ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE FOR UTILITIES & 
PUBLIC WORK DIRECTORS



UTILITIES & PUBLIC WORKS 
DEPARTMENTS 

JUST WHAT DO THEY DO FOR THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, OUR CITIZENS, AND  OUR VISITORS

Not Just Potholes & Poo

IT’S ABOUT DELIVERING PUBLIC SERVICES



1,483
WATER SERVICE 
CONNECTIONS

1,335
SEWER CONNECTIONS

1,083
GARBAGE CUSTOMERS

282
FIRE HYDRANTS

5 PRODUCTION WELLS
1 PRODUCTION SPRING

WASTEWATER PLANT
12 LAS Sprayfields

9 LIFT STATIONS

UTILITIES = Quality of Life, Health & Public Safety

WATER TOWER REFRESH

FIRE FLOW CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

WELLS #110, 111, 112

WATER METER UPGRADE

TESTING ISO RATING TO 
ENSURE PROPER FLOW 
FROM FIRE HYDRANTS

TESTING WATER QUALITY

TESTING WASTEWATER

WATERSHED PROTECTION

STAFF MUST ATTAIN & 
MAINTAIN VARIOUS 

CERTIFICATION LEVELS

1095
WORK ORDERS 

COMPLETED

241 COMMERCIAL
BACKFLOWS



Public Works = 
Public Service 

NEW SKATE PARK
DOG PARK 

PLAYGROUNDS
14 FITNESS 
STATIONS

3 COVERED 
PAVILIONS

FARMERS MARKET

15 MILES
OF STREETS

21.25 MILES
OF SIDEWALKS

3.56 MILES OF 
STATE HIGHWAY 

ROW
2 CEMETERIES 
OPERATED & 
PERPETUALLY
MAINTAINED

15 ACRES
OF PARKS

ANIMAL
CONTROLLENDING LIBRARY

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
LENDING FOOD BANK

HONORARY FLAG DISPLAYS
CITY HALL BUILDINGS

RENTAL RESIDENCE
GRHOF/DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM

SPECIAL EVENTS
HOLIDAY DECORATIONS



KEEPERS OF THE PHYSICAL INFRASTRUCTURE

• Departments accept challenge of planning, maintaining, & operating the 
city’s infrastructure.

• Public’s expectation is that our infrastructure will be ready & resilient
• Due to the impact on the public, for infrastructure to be resilient, these 

departments must develop & implement long-range plans, manage 
people, manage $$$, maximize equipment & infrastructure life 
expectancy, develop maintenance & operation strategies, plan for 
emergencies, minimize risk, develop capital improvement & financial 
strategies

• Roles continue to grow in sophistication (SCADA, computerized 
equipment, GIS, Panda Asset Management Program, EV Fleet, etc.)



Public Works

Road Paving
2 Grand Openings

6 Food Truck Fridays
Christmas Tree Lighting
Mountain Moonshine 

Festival

Utilities

New Wells
WWTP

Water Meter Upgrade
Improve Fire Flows





PROPOSAL – TO BUILD OFFICE & ADMINISTRATIVE 
SPACE FOR DIRECTORS & STAFF
Construct approximately 40’ x 31’ facility on old homesite adjacent to Maintenance 
Facility to provide administrative space for the Utilities & Public Works Departments, to 
include:
• Alarm System & Security Camera System expanded/installed to include this building.
• Offices for Utilities & Public Work Directors that will provide privacy for one-on-one 

meetings, planning, scheduling, etc.
• Proper storage space for EPD files, testing files, maps, blueprints, etc. This space could 

also be used for future growth if additional management position added.
• Provide Rest Room, Break Room/Kitchen, and small Meeting Space for Department 

Meetings, Training, etc.
• Space graded will be large enough to add additional building should it be needed in the 

future.
• More efficient heating & cooling, prevention of dust debris accumulating on computer 

equipment and upgraded SCADA system. 



Existing Office Space is Located in Aging Break 
Room at Maintenance Facility
Problems with Utilization of Existing Space, includes:
• No space for supervisory one-on-one confidential meetings, no quiet for 

planning, space is shared with two Directors & 10 employees
• Space is not properly or adequately heated/cooled, creating problems for 

computer systems.
• Dust from maintenance space settles on desks, computer equipment, etc.
• Existing space insufficient for existing employees from both departments 

for lunch, other breaks, meetings, and training. This is even more critical 
during the pandemic.



EXISTING OFFICE SPACE LOCATED WITHIN MAINTENANCE BARN



EXISTING OFFICE SPACE LOCATED WITHIN 
MAINTENANCE BARN



WHY NOT EXPAND WITHIN BARN SPACE – NO ROOM



JOB SITE



PROPOSED LOCATION OF NEW OFFICE SPACE

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

40'-0"

32
'-0

"

00 10' 20'
SCALE IN FEET

SCALE: 1" = 10'-0"

PROP. BUILDING
F.F. EL. 1337.25

N

PROP. 4" SEWER SERVICE
(BY OWNER)

SIDEWALK

EXIST. ASPH. DRIVE

GRAVEL PARKING

PROP. 3/4" W.L.
(BY OWNER)



View of Proposed New Facility

CEMENT BOARD
LAP SIDING

ALUMINUM GUTTER
AND DOWNSPOUT

CEMENT BOARD
TRIM

SHINGLE ROOF

PLATE 9'-1 1
8"

INTEGRAL
BRICKMOLD

CASING (TYP.)

CEMENT BOARD
LAP SIDING

ALUMINUM GUTTER
AND DOWNSPOUT

CEMENT BOARD
TRIM

SHINGLE ROOF

PLATE 9'-1 1
8"

SHINGLE ROOF

CEMENT BOARD
LAP SIDING

ALUMINUM GUTTER
AND DOWNSPOUT

CEMENT BOARD
TRIM

12

6

PLATE 9'-1 1
8"

CEMENT BOARD
LAP SIDING

ALUMINUM GUTTER
AND DOWNSPOUT

CEMENT BOARD
TRIM9'-8"

12

6

PLATE 9'-1 1
8"

Scale: 1/4"= 1'-0"
ELEVATIONA

Scale: 1/4"= 1'-0"
ELEVATIONB

Scale: 1/4"= 1'-0"
ELEVATIONC

Scale: 1/4"= 1'-0"
ELEVATIOND



Floor Plan of Proposed New Facility

31'-1"

ADA/UNISEX
BATHROOM

CONFERENCE/
MULTIPURPOSE

ROOM 13'-414"

12'-111
4"

12'-93 4"

17'-21
4"

15'-83
4"

1'-6"

41'-1"

OFFICE B

15'-43
8"

FILE

OFFICE
11'-2"

9'-117
8"

31'-1"

BREAK ROOM

12.5"
fin

2.5" fin

DBL. 2X4 WALL

4'-91
2"

7'-612"

7'-113
4"

15'-4"
5'-91

2"
10'-414" 15'-43 4"

7'-61
2"

9'-012"

9'-012"

2'-03 4"

3'-9"

3'-112"

7'-612"

2'-6"
16" (min.)1'-6" 4'-0"

3'-6" (min.)

1'-4"



STAFF RECOMMENDATION

• AWARD BID OF $367,373.00 TO BAYNE DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC 
INCLUDE & NOT ELIMINATE CONTINGENCY FUNDS OF $50,000.00 FOR 
COMPUTER EQUIPMENT, FURNITURE, ETC. 2nd Bid $433,900.00

• PROJECT WILL BE FUNDED OUT OF ARPA FUNDS (IF ALLOWED), 
REMAINING SPLOST VI, SPLOST VII, CAPITAL WATER AND SEWER FUNDS

• BDG WAS THE LOW BIDDER AFTER PROJECT WAS ADVERTISED FOR 30-DAYS
• BID PACKAGE, CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS, ETC. ALL PREPARED BY CEC 

(CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS)
• THESE TWO DEPARTMENTS SERVE THE CUSTOMER “WHERE THE RUBBER 

MEETS THE ROAD” SO TO SPEAK. THEY NEED THIS ADMINISTRATIVE SPACE 
WHICH SHOULD HAVE BEEN PROVIDED YEARS AGO. TAKE CARE OF OUR 
STAFF AS THEY TAKE CARE OF OUR PEOPLE.



LIVING HERE
Commitment to Community

Health & Quality of Life



HOMETOWN PRIDE

Georgia Racing Hall of  Fame

Updated Displays

Gordon Pirkle Room Special Events



Hometown, homegrown, homemade…





                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   DISCUSS AMENDING PERSONNEL POLICY TO INCLUDE A FLOATING 

HOLIDAY FOR EMPLOYEES  
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  01/20/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT # SALARIES       

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    __X_General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO ADD AN ADDITIONAL HOLIDAY TO THE CITY’S BENEFIT PACKAGE AT THE REQUEST OF 
COUNCILMEMBER JOHN WALDEN 

 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
     
 SEE ATTACHMENT:  PERSONNEL POLICY AMENDMENT 
     
          

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
   APPROVE, AMEND, DENY 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION:  
 
  
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator__________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   15      
 

 

 



Personnel Policy:  Page 36 amendment  

 

ADD:   m) Floating Holiday 

 

Purpose:  To be used for birthday, Mountain Moonshine Festival or any other event.  This holiday is not 
subject to double time and will have to be used to receive any monetary value.  



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  01/20/2022       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     16     
 

 

 



CITY MANAGER REPORT 

JANUARY 18 FOR JANUARY 20, 2022, MEETING 

Winter Storm January 15-17: The city experienced snow, ice, and heavy winds during the event. The Public Works 
Crew pre-treated all the main city roads with brine and GDOT did the same for the state highways. The PW Crew came 
in at 10 PM Saturday and worked straight through until 4 PM on Sunday with road checks every 30 minutes, plowing 
and clearing as needed. The brine worked extremely well as did our new snowplow. The Utilities Crew came in Saturday 
for a broken 1” waterline at Alden Trace. The waterline was in a cluster of other utilities and the vacuum truck from 
Townley’s had to be called in. Shortly thereafter, a 6” line broke. Working through the storm with snow sometimes 
blowing sideways, they were able to make the repairs. We posted a boil advisory for residences between Allen Street 
and Jack Heard Street. They finished repairs about the time the power went out and then it was making sure lift stations 
and well pumps were kept in operation by generators. The generator at Crown Point failed, but they were finally able 
to get it repaired. Utility personnel worked from Saturday afternoon through after 4 PM Sunday then were back on the 
job Sunday night and Monday making sure when the power was restored, the generators cut off as programmed. 
Winds/ice took out power all over the county and at one time, over 3,000 people were without power. In the city, we 
lost power at Gold Creek, Crown Point, and Farmington Woods. According to GA Power, they had numerous broken 
power poles and several hundred spans of wire that were torn down because of the storm. They brought in 350 
additional crew members. They anticipate that 95% of their customers should have power restored by 10 PM Tuesday 
night. I cannot say enough about the commitment and service provided by our city crews that worked tirelessly in bitter 
cold, driving snow/sleet/freezing rain, and gusting wind doing dangerous work to keep our city residents taken care of. 
This coming Thursday – Saturday forecast is calling for another frozen mix of precipitation. 
 
Administrative Offices for Utility and Public Works: A simple floor plan including two offices, a large 
map/blueprint/file room, a rest room, small kitchen, and small multipurpose meeting room for meetings and training 
was prepared and bids acquired with the lowest bid at $367,373.00. It will be brought for your consideration. This 
project is years behind where we should be and is important to our current operational efficiency as well as future 
growth.  
 
COVID: We had four staff out or on covid quarantine. One returned to work Monday, and we anticipate three returning 
on various days next week. Cases seemed to have peaked and are on the decline. We took advantage of EMS offer 
to test patients at Station # 1 this week, and their help was greatly appreciated. 
 
ARPA Funding: Thus far we have not received any word from the Governor’s Office regarding our grant requests. 
The US Treasury released the final ruling yesterday and permitted use of funds is somewhat clearer. Our Finance 
Administrator will be taking a webinar for even greater clarity. 
 
LOST Negotiations: These will start sooner than you think. The City Manager, City Clerk, and Finance Administrator 
will be taking GMA training on the subject in early March. 
 
SPLOST Collections: SPLOST VII collections to continue to be ahead of last year. Thus far the county has received 
just over $4 million of the $8.5 million they must receive before we begin receiving proceeds. These numbers are 
through November. LOST receipts are up as well. 
 
Moonshine Festival AAR: This week staff met with representatives of Kare for Kids, the Dawson County Sheriff’s 
Office, and the Dawson County EMS for an After-Action Review of the 2021 Moonshine Festival. The AAR went very 
well with everyone agreeing the event was successful and without incident. We are beginning to plan for next year’s 
event. 
 



Community Mental Health Event: The City Manager met with Rebecca Bliss of Family Connections regarding a 
community event tied to Stuff the Bus that they want to have next July in the park. It has the potential to be a great 
event.  As we begin planning the event, I will share it with you. 
 
Contractor Error: The contractor that built the new sidewalk extending Allen Street to the park and City Hall had their 
striping contractor come in this week. Unfortunately, the work they did was not supposed to be done. When we agreed 
to the change order you approved extending the sidewalk, the original striping was supposed to change. However, 
Summit Construction and their contracted striping company had some miscommunication. The crew came in and 
ground down the one-way errors and painted a walkway on the road in the ally next to City Hall. Neither were supposed 
to be done. At Summit’s expense, the company will have to return, repaint the arrows and hash the walkway with 
thermo paint. 
 
Alternative Energy: The City Manager met with a representative from Indigo Energy, a company based in Gainesville, 
GA to discuss EV charging stations for the city. I await a proposal, but it looks like the company will install/build the 
charging station(s) at their expense, reimburse the city for any energy used, and offer a pay as you go charging 
opportunity for citizens and visitors. As soon as I receive the proposal, I will share it with you. 
 
Recreation Opportunities Jointly with the Library: The City Manager met with the county librarian regarding the 
location and timeline for the trail and bridge to and from Main Street Park to the library. This project was finally approved 
by the county, and we hope to complete it before spring. They are planning a community garden behind the library and 
wanted to make sure the location didn’t interfere with the trail. We also discussed for loan recreation equipment they 
have available to provide to visitors. We also discussed the possibility of using some of their area as part of a disc golf 
course. We will pursue this over the next few weeks.  
 
Christmas 2022: Staff are researching a Christmas tree walk for the park patterned after the one the city of Chatsworth 
has done for the last few years. Google Chatsworth Christmas trees in the park and I assure you that you will be 
impressed. We are researching the feasibility of something similar here. Next year’s Christmas tree lighting will be held 
the Saturday before Thanksgiving on November 19th. 
 
Main Street Park Additions & SPLOST VII: Staff are developing plans and getting cost estimates for a basketball 
court, an addition to the skate park, pickle ball courts, the addition of shade, and stage opportunities for Main Street 
Park utilizing SPLOST VII funds. 
 
 
Copper & Lead Regulations: Of great concern is the potential for tremendous changes in the lead and copper rules 
impacting water systems nationwide. We are watching the debate closely but with the current administration in the 
White House, we anticipate the legislation passing. We will provide more, updated information as it is available. Any 
version will be at considerable expense to the city. We anticipate some possible funding to be made available as well. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant: Turnipseed Engineering is developing the final design as well as the USDA funding 
package for this priority project.  
 
Leak Adjustments:  

Water   $170.71 Sewer   $273.91  Total     $441.91 

Calendar YTD     $6,384.07 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  01/20/2022       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2022  

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   17   
 

 

 



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

July 1, 2021 - December 30, 2021

50%

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
      Taxes 1,744,550$       1,100,535$       63.08%
      Licenses and permits 102,525            96,712              94.33%
      Intergovernmental revenues 35,000              42,207              120.59%
      Fees 249,000            46,412              18.64%
      Other 70,057              52,954              75.59%

               Total revenues 2,201,132         1,338,820         60.82%

EXPENDITURES
   Department:
      Council 99,215              55,159              55.60%
      Mayor 21,480              12,527              58.32%
      Elections 8,000                12,587              0.00%
      Administration 947,570            539,563            56.94%
      City Hall building 131,135            55,323              42.19%
      Animal control 1,523                113                   7.42%
      Roads 520,996            316,105            60.67%
      Parks 53,913              123,208            228.53%
      Planning and zoning 380,300            243,296            63.97%
      Economic development 37,000              6,000                16.22%

 
               Total expenditures 2,201,132         1,363,881         61.96%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (25,061)            

      Transfer in From Reserves 25,061              

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (0)                     



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
WATER, SEWER, AND GARBAGE FUND

July 1, 2021 - December 30, 2021

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
       Water fees 710,000$         431,784$         60.81%
       Sewer fees 810,000           507,308           62.63%
       Garbage fees 203,500           124,044           60.96%
       Miscellaneous 371,525           73,673             19.83%

               Total revenues 2,095,025        1,136,809        54.26%

EXPENDITURES
        Depreciation 574,000           271,768           47.35%
        Garbage service 175,000           103,213           58.98%
        Group insurance 124,000           68,151             54.96%
        Insurance -                  #DIV/0!
        Interest 87,450             40,741             46.59%
        Payroll taxes 27,778             13,377             48.16%
        Professional 115,891           70,399             60.75%
        Miscellaneous 248,865           53,211             21.38%
        Repairs/supplies 145,423           119,647           82.28%
        Retirement 22,000             17,710             80.50%
        Salaries 347,402           177,710           51.15%
        Technical services 72,037             37,719             52.36%
        Utilities 155,179           72,916             46.99%

               Total expenditures 2,095,025        1,046,562        49.95%

INCOME (LOSS) 90,247             



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST 

July 1, 2021 - December 30, 2021

SPLOST VI
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Interest 300                   345                   115.00%
       Other 555,700            -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 556,000            345                   0.06%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Roads and sidewalks 494,000            302,597            61.25%
       Public works equipment - roads -                   6,325                0.00%
       Sewer projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer -                   -                   0.00%
       Water projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water -                   -                   0.00%
       Farmers market 62,000              4,500                7.26%
       Parks and recreation -                   -                   0.00%

               Total expenditures 556,000            313,422            56.37%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (313,077)          

      Transfer in From Reserves 313,077            
  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   


	1. 01.20.2022 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2 12.20.2021 MINUTES.draft
	8. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	9. 1 Executive Summary For ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE
	10. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ANX-ZA C2100043 MCC 1-11-22
	10. 2 ANX-ZA C2100043 MCC Letter 1-11-22
	10. 3 ANX-ZA C2100043 Timeline 12-7-21
	10. 4 22-1-5 Recorded Plat Perimeter Rd - Book00087Page0018
	10. 5 Minor 2 New Legal 12-17-21
	10. 6. 20210928155819541_Redacted
	11. 1 Maple Hill Dr Detention Pond Executive Summary Agenda 1-20-22
	11. 2 Maple Hill Drive detetntion Pond Executive Summary
	12. 2 01-2022 High Strength Wastewater Ordinance Amendment
	13. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items ZONING ORD AMENDMENT
	13. 2 02-2022 Zoning Amendment Ordinance 2021 (expirations and buffers)
	Sec. 802. Buffer required.
	Sec. 917. Expiration of conditional use, variance  and zoning approval.

	14. 1 Executive Summary Admin Bldg at Barn
	14. 2 Supporting Docs ADMIN BLDG
	14. 3 Bob's Presentation
	City of Dawsonville�Administrative Facility for Utilities & Public Works Depts.�
	ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE FOR UTILITIES & PUBLIC WORK DIRECTORS
	UTILITIES & PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENTS 
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	KEEPERS OF THE PHYSICAL INFRASTRUCTURE
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	PROPOSAL – TO BUILD OFFICE & ADMINISTRATIVE SPACE FOR DIRECTORS & STAFF
	Existing Office Space is Located in Aging Break Room at Maintenance Facility
	EXISTING OFFICE SPACE LOCATED WITHIN MAINTENANCE BARN
	EXISTING OFFICE SPACE LOCATED WITHIN MAINTENANCE BARN
	WHY NOT EXPAND WITHIN BARN SPACE – NO ROOM
	JOB SITE
	PROPOSED LOCATION OF NEW OFFICE SPACE
	View of Proposed New Facility
	Floor Plan of Proposed New Facility
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22

	15. 1 Executive Summary For PERSONNEL POLICY AMENDMENT
	15. 2 Supporting Documents ADD FLOATING HOLIDAY
	16. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	16. 2 01202022 CITY MANAGER REPORT
	17. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR
	Financial Statements-Dec21
	GF Budget
	WS vs Budget
	SPLOST




